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| .
Yang Chaodong # ;
Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), |
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 (the “Year”). In previous years, the Group has been
adversely affected by the indifferent uranium products market and
had recorded losses. | am pleased to present, despite the fact that
the uranium price is still at a low level, the uranium products trade
business has recorded profit during the Year and has laid a good
foundation for future development.

BUSINESS

The main revenue of the Group continued to be generated from
uranium products trade for the Year. The main business has
substantial improvement and revenue has increased of
to HK$652,060,000 (2016:
HK$189,429,000), gross profit has increased to approximately
HK$14,230,000 (2016: gross loss of approximately HK$15,108,000)
during the Year. Due to the tight cash flow position of the Group’s
37.2% Mines d'Azelik S.A.

(“Somina”), the production of its uranium mine in Niger has

approximately 244% approximately

owned associate, Société des
temporarily been suspended since February 2015. After heavy losses

incurred by Somina in previous years, the carrying value of the
Group’s investment in Somina has been reduced to zero in 2015
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and the Group would not share any further loss of Somina in 2017,

The Group continues the negotiation with the Mongolian authorities
for the terms in the joint venture agreement for the joint
arrangement to develop the Mongolian uranium resources project.

RESULTS

During the Year, the Group has substantial improvement in its main
business and reported a revenue of approximately HK$652,060,000
(2016: approximately HK$189,429,000), an
approximately 244%. The Group has also recorded a gross profit of

increase of

approximately HK$14,230,000 (2016: gross loss of approximately
HK$15,108,000). Profit for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$257,000 (2016: loss approximately HK$28,192,000). The total
comprehensive income for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company has increased to approximately HK$3,823,000 (2016:
expense of approximately HK$28,002,000).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group has recorded a significant increase in trading volume of
uranium products during the Year, and will continue to develop its
trading business in natural uranium products. The Group expects the
trading in electronic products which was commenced in January
2018 may become a major source of income in 2018. The Group
will also consider trading in other products to diversify its income
source.

The Group will closely monitor the situation and continue to work
with the other shareholders of Somina for its future plans.

The Group will continue to negotiate with the Mongolian
Government for the setting up of a joint venture company for the
Mongolian project,

and complete all the procedures for the

application of mining licenses.

As mentioned in the announcement, dated 12th March, 2018, of
the Company (“Announcement”), the Group has plans to invest in
CNNC Financial
investment is subject to, among other things, approval of the

Leasing Company Limited. Completion of the

independent shareholders of the Company. For further details,
please refer to the Announcement.

The Group continues to expand and diversify its business by
leveraging on the strengths of its parent company, in the field of
nuclear energy, to develop project with reasonable returns.
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APPRECIATION Bt

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this HRNARBRXREZRHEUKESHBRE FEF KL
opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to our ¥EEEE—EHRE BRI B8 KO H
shareholders, customers and business partners for their long- & @ WEHAEEEEBRBRIETINBE—
standing supports and my gratitude to the Group’s management FZZHKEE -

team and staff for their endeavours and contributions in the past

year.

Yang Chaodong BEE

Chairman *E

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2018 B —E-NF=ZA=Z+NH
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group remained as the development
of uranium resources assets and trading of natural uranium products
during the year ended 31st December, 2017 (the “Year”). There has
been an over-supply of natural uranium products in recent years,
thus causing the market prices of uranium products to remain at
low level. Yet the Group had substantially increased its revenue and
gross profit from the trading of uranium business during the Year as
compared to last year.

During the Year, the Group continued to communicate and
negotiate with the Mongolian Government to set up a joint venture
company for the application of the mining licenses of the Group's
Mongolian uranium resources project. The application has been
delayed due to the changes in the relevant Mongolian government
officials. The Group will endeavour to expedite the negotiations with
the officials for setting up a joint venture company with the
Mongolian government for the project and finalise the application
procedures for the mining licenses.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group reported a revenue of approximately
HK$652,060,000 (2016: approximately HK$189,429,000) from its
operating business, an increase of approximately 244%, an
substantial increase compared to last year, which was resulted
primarily from the increase in trading volume of uranium products.
The Group has also recorded a gross profit of approximately

HK$14,230,000 (2016: gross loss of approximately HK$15,108,000).

Other income, gains and losses of approximately HK$4,705,000
(2016: approximately HK$3,097,000), an increase of approximately
52% from last year, were mainly from interest income and exchange
gains during the Year. Due to the substantial increase of business
activities during the Year, the selling and distributing expenses had
increased by approximately 55.7% to approximately HK$850,000
(2016: approximately HK$546,000) as compared to last year. The
administrative expenses amounted to approximately HK$17,828,000
(2016: approximately HK$15,635,000) during the Year, the increase
of approximately 14.0% compared to last year was due to the loss
incurred by XXEM LLC,
Mongolia.

the joint operation of the Group in

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)
FOR THE YEAR

Summing up the combined effects of the foregoing, profit for the
(2016:
After taken into account of the

Year amounted to approximately HK$257,000 loss
approximately HK$28,192,000).

other comprehensive income of approximately HK$3,566,000 (2016:
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approximately HK$190,000) due to exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation currency, the total comprehensive income
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$3,823,000 (2016:
expense of approximately HK$28,002,000).

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The Group has recorded a significant increase in revenue and gross
profit from the trading uranium business during the Year, primarily
due to increase in trading volume of uranium products, and will
continue to develop its trading of uranium business. The Group will
be proactive in expanding and diversifying its trading activities,
including trading in other products, with a view to increase returns
for the Group. The Group will take advantage of the considerable
experience in trading of the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Company, namely Mr. Bai Donghai, to develop
trading business in other products apart from uranium products with
a view to diversify the income source of the Group. The Group
expects the trading in electronic products may become a major
source of income in 2018.

The associate of the Group (Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.
(“Somina™)) is still facing severe cash flow problems and will not be
able to resume production within a short period of time. The Group
will closely monitor the situation and continue to work with the
other shareholders of Somina for its future plans.

For the Mongolian project, the Group will continue to negotiate
with the Mongolian Government for the setting up of a joint
venture company for the project. The project has not been, to a
material extent, adversely affected by its slow progress, as the
market price of natural uranium products has remained low during
the Year. The Group intends to time the production to match with
the recovery of the natural uranium market price.

As mentioned in the announcement, dated 12th March, 2018, of
the Company (“Announcement”), the Group has plans to invest in
CNNC Financial Leasing Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”). Total
be approximately RMB373,190,000. Upon
completion, the Group will hold, in aggregate, not more than

consideration will

18.51% of the registered capital in CNNC Leasing. By leveraging on
the market expertise and size of the shareholders of CNNC Leasing
Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company, a market leader in the

including China National

nuclear energy market, the management believes that CNNC Leasing
could be able to develop into a promising business and generate
satisfactory returns to its shareholders. Completion of the investment
is subject to, among other things, approval of the independent
shareholders of the Company. For further details, please refer to the
Announcement.
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The Group aims to expand and diversify its business by leveraging
on the strengths of CNNC, in the field of nuclear energy, to develop
project with reasonable returns.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group employed approximately 12
(2016: 15) full-time employees of whom 2 (2016: 2) were based in
Hong Kong, 6 (2016: 8) were based in the PRC and 4 (2016: 5)
were based in Mongolia. Total staff costs incurred during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$7,358,000 (2016: approximately
HK$6,599,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and conditions
prevailing in the industry. Depending on the financial results of the
Group and the performance of individual employees, eligible staff
may also be granted discretionary performance bonuses, in addition
to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes.
To raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training
courses to employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 371st December, 2017, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings (at 31st December, 2016: Nil). The Group had net
current assets amounting to approximately HK$319,282,000 (at 31st
December, 2016: approximately HK$316,184,000) and the current
liabilities amounting to approximately HK$182,684,000 (at 31st
2016: approximately HK$250,265,000) as at 31st
December, 2017. During the Year, the Group continued trading in

December,

uranium products, and as at 31st December, 2017, the Group had
receivables of approximately HK$70,005,000 (at 31st
December, 2016: 166,487,000) and trade payables of approximately
HK$141,357,000 (at 31st December, 2016: HK$210,190,000). Capital
expenditures on property, plant and equipment were approximately
HK$56,000 during the Year (2016: approximately HK$327,000).
Capital expenditures on exploration and evaluation assets were
approximately HK$1,248,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,950,000).
The Group did not have any commitment to purchase additional

trade

property, plant and equipment that had been contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements as at 31st
December, 2017 (at 31st December, 2016: Nil).
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During the Year, net cash outflow from operating activities
amounted to approximately HK$40,951,000 (2016: approximately
HK$65,324,000). The Group’s cash on hand and bank balances
decreased from approximately HK$285,020,000 as at 31st
December, 2016 to approximately HK$247,743,000 as at 31st

December, 2017.

Total shareholders’ funds increased from approximately
HK$541,883,000 as at 31st December, 2016 to approximately
HK$545,706,000 as at 31st December, 2017, mainly due to the
comprehensive income during the Year. The gearing ratio, in terms
of total debts to total assets, decreased to approximately 0.25 (at
31st December,
2017.

2016: approximately 0.32) as at 31st December,

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the Year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD,
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB against foreign currencies could affect
the operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB were relatively stable during the Year, the Group
did not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy for
hedging significant foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the
Group since 31st December, 2016.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
Apart from the 37.2% of the share capital in Somina held by Ideal

Mining Limited pledged to a bank for banking facilities granted to
Somina, there was no charge on the Group’s assets during the Year
(2016: apart from the shares in Somina, Nil).

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the second Environment, Social and Governance Report by the
in the
with disclosure

Group, highlighting the Group’s overall performance

environmental, social and governance aspects,
reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Unless otherwise stated, this environmental and social report covers
the overall performance of Hong Kong headquarters, Beijing office
and Mongolia office for the year ended 31st December, 2017 in the
two main areas: environmental and social.

ENGAGING OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group has made every effort to engage all of its stakeholders,
including shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers
and business partners, government and regulators, the environment
and the community to achieve sustainable development.

A. Environmental
Types of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period were mainly electricity, gasoline and paper. The Group's
business does not involve in production-related air, water, and
land pollutions which are regulated under national laws and
regulations.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was 238 sq.m (2016:
936 sg.m). Of which the floor area coverage for Hong Kong
headquarters and Mongolia office was 114 sq.m and 124 sg.m
(2016:
agreement of the Beijing office was terminated during the

114 sq.m and 100 sg.m) respectively. The rental

reporting period (2016: 722 sg.m).
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Environmental (continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emission

Scope of greenhouse

gas emission Emission sources

i = 5%, BS HE T 8t

180 2R iR

Scope 1
#EN

Direct emission Petroleum consumed

A. IREw)
BERBEHNE
Emission Total emission
(in tonnes of CO,e)
HER &
(LIWE — Ltk E & =t)
2017
—FT—tH

(in percentage)
HER &
(E5k)
2017
—FT—tH

by vehicles
BRI EEER 1.76 8.71 3.42% 7.22%
Scope 2
#[E?2
Indirect emission Purchased electricity
i 4 BE B BIHMA 49.38 110.98 95.70% 92.04%
Scope 3
#[=3
Other indirect emission Paper consumption
H fth, il 2 BE AR AR OH FE 0.45 0.89 0.88% 0.74%
Total
et 51.59 120.58 100% 100%
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A.

Environmental (continved) A.
Greenhouse gas emission intensity

: e pO rt (continued)
ERERBE

Environmental (continued)

BEREHBEE

Total greenhouse gas BERBEHEN=() tCO,e
emission (a) WE A LIRE 2 51.60 120.58
Total floor area of FTEZ ZHRZEEMBED) sq.m
coverage (b) SEHK 238 936
Emission intensity (c)=(a)/(b) BE % E (0)=(a)/(b) tC0,e/sq.m
B 75 KN
—&aikiREE 0.22 0.13

There were approximately 51.60 tonnes (2016: 120.58 tonnes)
of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases emitted from
the Group’s operation in the reporting period. The annual
emission intensity was approximately 0.22 tCO,e/sq.m (2016:
0.13 tCO,e/sq.m).

Gasoline

A total of approximately 1,050 litres (2016: 5,189 litres) of
gasoline were used for motor vehicles by the Group in the
reporting period, contributing to approximately 1.76 tonnes
(2016: 8.71 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent.

The Group’s Hong Kong headquarters, Beijing office and
Mongolia office did not have any vehicle in the reporting
period, rental of vehicles according to the actual needs by
time, thus reducing gas emission. The Group encourages green
travelling policy to reduce the usage of public transport and to
lower gas emission.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was approximately
70,320 kWh (2016: 158,043 kWh), contributing to
approximately 49.38 tonnes (2016: 110.98 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent.

The Group has reduced the office’s floor area this year and
always uses energy savings electrical equipment, encourages
employees to save energy and enhances electrical equipment
efficiency.

Paper

A total of approximately 0.1 tonne (2016: 0.2 tonne) of paper
was used for daily office operations by the Group in the
reporting period, contributing to approximately 0.45 tonne
(2016: 0.89 tonne) of carbon dioxide equivalent.

The Group encourages paperless office environment, reducing
the paper usage and requests double-sided printing.
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SOCIAL
(1) Employment and labour practices

Employment
The Group had a total number of 12 (2016: 15) full
time employees as of 31st December, 2017.

HE

(1) ERRELER
12 15
R-T—+&+-A=+—0

AEBHEBENREEE(ZZT— X
F:15%) 2P AELBES -

Employee’s location distribution Hong Kong PRC Mongolia
EEHESH it TE =)
No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage
N | itk A {174 AH {174
2017
—E 5 2 17% 6 50% 4 33%
2016
“E-RE 2 14% 8 53% 5 33%
Employee’s sex distribution Male Female
& & 14 5l 53 i B it
Percentage No. Percentage
A 174 AH 1ttt
—E—+LF 6 50% 6 50%
2016
—E-RF 8 53% 7 47%
Employee’s age distribution 26-35 36-45 46-55 56 & above
EEFRAH 26-35 36-45 46-55 56 W £
No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage
AB 1:174 IN | 1kt AB 11174 AB 1:174
2017
—TtE 3 25% 6 50% 1 8% 2 17%
2016
—E-RE 6 40% 4 27% 4 27% 1 6%

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to
attract and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and
adjusted on a yearly basis based on performance
appraisals and the market trend. Employees are entitled
to year-end bonus, mandatory provident fund, social
security contributions and various types of paid leave in
addition to annual leave and sick leave. The Group also
provides internal academic and training opportunities to
the employees.

The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees, and equal opportunities for
job advancement and benefits. Regardless of their age,
nationality, gender, religion and ethnical backgrounds, all
employees are treated fairly without discrimination.

CNNC International Limited 2017 Annual Report
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: eport (continued)
ERERmEw

B. SOCIAL (continuea) B. ?‘i"é."(f%)
(1) Employment and labour practices (continued) (1) ERERETLTFHR =

Employees’ health and safety ESRFHZ 2
The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and REBTHABRNEEZHERE
safety procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being. 2ERANRERERE  8FH
Annual medical checks and safety equipment are ArREERHEIEFERER
provided to employees. Briefing, training, news and tips T BELHREAM - AEE
are provided to employees regularly to raise their health TEHRESRME®R B
and safety awareness. BARER REEIZEZ2E#
The Group has a sound and effective health and safety AEBEEEREETZREMBILE
procedure, no casualty from work in the reporting B RMERAEERQAFLT -
period. aE5EH-
Development and training ZFRERIZH
The Group pays great attention to staff development and AEBSEERS THEIIAER
training to enhance their technical skills and EEEXRERBERZSE KK
professionalism. The Group provided its employees ERHREMAREITRHEZ AR
multiple external and internal trainings in professional ¥R g Bz oA%om
skills, management, linguistics and business, and a total HEEENE - AFFI - G E
of 182 hours (2016: 224 hours) training courses were H182/NBF (=T — N F 1 224/
conducted in the reporting period. Br) 2 EAIERAE o

Employee training data & S5l 5t

Total number of employees EE B 12 15

Total training hours 5 o)l 48 By B 182 224

Average training hours per employee A 13 5% 3l B & 15 15
Employees’ communication ETXm
The Group strongly believes employees are the most REBBRERERATIREEN
important assets of the Group and pays a key role in the BE RRARAERAFEREDN
development of the Group. The Group, through various e ARERBREHNERS
communication channels, motivates its employees in the EEERENLYEESE - RIE
reporting period. The Group adopts weekly meetings to AflemEX  KRIELS -
exchange working ideas, plans and to build up effective ZHIEHAE REBHRTIERE
communication channels among employees and CHBLRI ERNEBRE
management. The Group also organizes group functions, B AEETEBZ AEEER
tea meetings to enhance loyalty and staff relationship. T AEE RaEERE

B BB ERRIK-

Labour standard 2T ER

The Group strictly follows the local labour jurisdiction in NEBEEFBER S EBRQET
employment management. No child nor forced labour FIEBR(GhR) AR AR -
was involved in the Group’s operations in the reporting R ERANEERZE THRE5
period. TEEZESEMH-

RiEBEERAR —E—tFEFH® 15
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SOCIAL (continued)

(2)

(3)

Operating practices

Supply chain management

A strict tendering process is in place to provide an open,
fair and transparent platform for securing the suppliers
for procurement. The Group strictly follows the
procedures for supplier’s selection, decision making, and
contract signing to ensure the legality, reasonableness

and regulation of the process.

The main activities of the Group are trading in natural
uranium products. The main suppliers or brokers range
from the USA, Europe and Kazakhstan etc. The business
partners range top of their trade and are reputable
companies.

Product responsibility
The main business of the Group is not production of
products, thus this is not applicable.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without
undue influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and
fairness as its core values. All employees are required to
strictly follow the code of conduct and Group's policy to
prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group’'s code of conduct states clearly
the anti-bribery, forbidding the personal relationship with
suppliers and contractors and discipline requirements.
Employees are required to sign the code to ensure the
reputation of the Group would not be impaired by
fraud, dishonesty and bribery.

Community

Community Investment

The Group actively participates in community charity.
During the reporting period, the Group through
donations and courtesy visits supported the lesser
community and improved their life quality. Beijing office
had participated in the CNNC Group's donation function
“IE P A% - ¥ F F /N and Mongolia office made
(RAEEBEBHEH in

Mongolia which achieved a great social influence.

donations to the local tribe
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2017 (the “Year"”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
are collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at
enhancing the Company's value for stakeholders. The Board is
responsible for making all major matters of the Company including:
the approval and monitoring of all major policies of the Group,
monitoring financial and operating performance, ensuring the
integrity of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting systems,
the declaration of interim dividend, making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, notifiable and
connected transactions, nomination of directors, Company Secretary
and other significant financial and operational matters. The day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by

the abovementioned officers.

The Board currently comprises a total of six members including one
executive director, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”), whose details are set
out on pages 31 to 34. Members of the Board have different
professional, industry experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development of the
Group’s business. More than one-third of the Board are INEDs and
one of the INEDs has appropriate related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely
information of the Group through management and are able to
obtain independent professional advices on issues whenever deemed

necessary by the directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least four times a year to

discuss strategies and business issues, including financial
performance of the Group, and additional meetings will be held
when necessary. The Company has held regular board meetings in
accordance with the Listing Rules, the CG Code and also the
Articles of Association of the Company, formal notice and board
meeting documents are also given in advance to all directors. During
the Year, the Board held four regular meetings. Members of the
Board can attend the meetings either in person or through
electronic means of communication. A record of the directors’

attendance at regular Board meetings is set out on page 27.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated in order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in
writing. The Chairman leads the Board’s workings and proceedings,
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the
Group's strategies and policies and for conducting the Group’s
businesses.

THE TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
of the INEDs are

Listing Rules. The Company considers all

independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
(the “Model Code")
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon the Company’s specific

Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
enquiry of each director, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors

adopted by the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
management of the Company, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the publication of the accounts of the

Group is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set
out in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to the CG Code, directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of attending training seminar or reading material
on legal and regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business
or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all
times.

The system of internal controls and risk management aims to help
achieving the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets and
maintaining proper accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information. However, the design of the system is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
rather than eliminate

objectives are being sought.

manage risks of failure when business

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system
covering all material controls in area of financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risks management as well
as physical and information system security.
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Environment
RE B8R

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT (continvea

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives,
safeguard asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure
proper maintenance of books and records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and to

ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit
Committee. It is noted that there is no significant areas of concern

which may affect the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions on risk management and internal
control as set out in Section C.2 of the CG code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,

Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

Services rendered

Fit 12 #4¢ R %5

PEPESIE « Bl PG E R & AN EP
NG

AEBERERBEZ - REZEREIEEH

AYEE MRELEGFTEEE RIS ARMHE

N EBE sk )3 2 A] SEBF TS S5 - DA R

BRMEBENNRERGCTZIEBRERF

NEBZAPIHBB LR ASE B
HEMEBRERE KRS LRSBEHETR
REM - ARAEETRHE 2 NPT
RBFEL S EREFRLZEGHEE -
BHEIB THREAGBXNEFENINEE
R

AEER BEEREM AKEZzEETD
XERTAEC2RMBFEHRRERE LA
EBES ¥ 2 57 AIMER ST -

1 S5 Bl BN &
RAFE  BAARARBEEY « BER
FEHETZMERIMT

Fees paid/payable
Eft FEfEE

2017 2016

—F—-t#F
HK$’000
BT

HK$'000
BT

Audit services Ei IR 1,350 1,350
Non-audit services IEEFT R
(i.e. Taxation, Interim Financial Statement (B~ R HisR &S 2 0
Review and Professional Service) REERE) 70 83
1,420 1,433
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December
2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group’s accounting and finance department and maintaining good
and independent communications with the management as well as
external auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Li Zhihuang

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
None of them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or
existing auditor of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and also
had two meetings with the management and external auditors of
the Company. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were
tabled to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where
appropriate. The attendance of each member is set out on page 27.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2017 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to
the Board.
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Environment:
BE HERE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’'s Remuneration Committee was established in
September 2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Cui Liguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Bai Donghai

Mr. Li Zhihuang

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Remuneration Committee are the
INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their
specific remuneration package for directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes by reference to market conditions, performance of
the Group and the individual and corporate goals and objectives as
set by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
The minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled
to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where
appropriate. The attendance of each member is set out on page 27.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for
the remuneration of executive director and senior management and
assessed the performance of executives.

22  CNNC International Limited 2017 Annual Report

MMESE
ARFHWERAR-TTRFNARY
RAER A B

ENBRE(FHZLEEE/E)
ARExLE

FEREE

oA

RERLE

FHEZEE@REKBET A=ZBRARAF

BE - -FHZEe2REHEHN AR S

FHEZEe T ERECREARRARE
EFMeBREEBAESTRIELEZSE I
2BmERR AEBERBEARRARES
BAEHIEzE%E ’f“—‘&il‘ﬂé B ES

BREEBABFNGTE  BEHFME
R BB fi%ﬂﬁﬁ VRIRHER

FMN SRR AR RE S -

FHZEENAFERNRIT—REZE - H M
ZERCRLBRCIREEFRMBAE KKRIE
ETH-BRKEBHEXRENAREF27
cBL ZEENENRATEERSR
EEZHMERRRFBITHRABRR -

HUE ‘mH Hiﬂ



= port (continued)

L ERRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
On 27th March, 2012, the Board approved the set up of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Its current members

include:

Mr. Yang Chaodong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Bai Donghai

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Nomination Committee are the
INEDs of the Company and the Chairman of the committee is the
Chairman of the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the
independence of the INEDs; and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year.
The attendance of each member is set out on page 27.
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REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of developing
and maintaining sound and effective corporate governance within
the Group and is committed to ensuring that an effective
governance structure is put in place to continuously review and
improve the corporate governance practices, including to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management; within the Group in light of the
evolving operating environment and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted appropriate policies and practices on
corporate governance and the Board would make recommendations
to the Group by reviewing the operation of the Group from time to
time. The Group has adopted a code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to its employees and directors. The Board
confirmed that the Group has complied with the legal and
regulatory requirements and ensures the Group’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure regarding corporate governance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in line with the
amendments to the CG Code regarding board diversity.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan (“Mr. Li"), is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. Mr. Li has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 5th
November, 2008. Mr. Li is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the professional development of
the directors.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under Rule 3.28
and Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS" RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company, any shareholder entitled to receive
notice of and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the
Company is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to
attend and vote instead of him.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the
annual general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. External auditor shall also be invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meetings and are available to assist the
Directors in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their
auditor’s report.

RIGHT TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
extraordinary general meetings of the Company. Extraordinary
general meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of
any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

: Re pO rt (continued)

REEERBE

B RHEF )

EEELESER  KWMEFTRELE - 8
HAZEeNEMKE  VALREARITH
% B8 B F K2 fF 2 AR SRR [ o SNIE A% BRAD IR
ERBHEARRKRRAFAZ  HESHHE
EMERREEABEXR I ERZEM SRS RE
BARZREM -

BHRRFIXERRERR
B HE

REARBZABERMBNF681K - BIRE
BIRERAI AR RMERMBHIALBRZE
EERMAR BRAZRKAXRERARANE
BZEEZRER(IMARBTHRL Lt
TE2WER - AEMMER) B+ 58
AREZEIBRHBRFRIBBRARE  HZX
FERLARZEEZERZAAFEARARAAD
Rtnz—2@REARMEARARRE
PIRGZRERE) - REKHI KRG IRA] A
REMER —BBER (B —ERATSEE R (RE
REN)ZERERMAR BREBREAX
EARANBBEZEIEZRFR (LWMARA
THERELATERETR AREMMRE
B BERINARG T EFASTRLMGA
KABRE  HZBRARKXEBRRKZ AR
BARBNDR D2 — 2B RBA (M5
ARABRFINAEGZEREE) - WEFRH
MIXEERZ ARFA2VBARBIZEERF
BRAE  AIBERABFIRRBREMTE
MREREBF B L 2 EMFERLATRE
ERNEERAFMAEZHARTABRBE
FplKg Rl A AEBRZEMKER
SREEFHERZBEA=EARERERA
B BERARARARFERAENREEAEES
BARBEBHAAGMELENMAEREER -

FREBAERAR —T—tFFH 25




RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Company Secretary in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CNNC International Limited
Unit 3009, 30th Floor
No. 118 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong
By facsimile: (852) 2598 1010
By email: info@cnncintl.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders.
The information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provide additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings, announcements to the market and circulars to
shareholders as well as periodic written reports in the form of
preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual
reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS" ATTENDANCE AT BOARD,
AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS, GENERAL

MEETINGS

Board

Meetings

Audit
Committee

Meetings

Remuneration
Committee

Meeting

Nomination
Committee

Meeting

Annual
General
Meeting

EXR EBEZEg FWEEE REZEEE RFEEE
ERER i # Ef Py |
Total number of meetings held AEERNRITZGHREY 4 2 1 3 1
during the Year
Number of meetings attended: FEEgHRE:
Chairman and Non-executive Director T EBFEHTEES
Mr. Yang Chaodong BEELL 3 (100%) N/A NA  2(100%) 1 (100%)
(appointed on 21st March, 2017) (R=—FE—+FZA=-+-HBLMD TER TEA
Mr. Du Yunbin HER LA 1 (100%) N/A N/A 1 (100%) N/A
(resigned on 21st March, 2017) (RZB—+tF=A=+—-HEMD TER @A TER
Chief Executive Officer and THERBRTES
Executive Director
Mr. Bai Donghai BREEE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 13th November, 2017) (R=ZT—tE+—-A+=HLE) TER TER TiER TiER TER
Mr. Xie Jiajie HENELE 2 (100%) N/A N/A 1(100%) N/A
(appointed on 5th June, 2017 and (RZT—tFXARBLER TER TiER TER
resigned on 13th November, 2017) RZZE—+F+—AT=HEE)
Ms. Wang Ying THELZL 4 (100%) N/A 1 (100%) 2 (100%) 1 (100%)
(resigned on 13th November, 2017) (R=Z—tF+-At+=HEMT) TEA
Vice General Manager and Executive EIBEEEHITEE
Director
Mr. Gao Shangxiong = 1(100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 30th April, 2017) (RZZ—+EMA=1HEF) TER TEA TEA TEA
Non-executive Director EHTES
Mr. Xu Shouyi BIFEEE 4 (100%) 2 (100%) 1(100%) N/A 1 (100%)
(resigned on 13th November, 2017) (RZT—tE+—-A+=HEE) TEA
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFEHITES
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry REBEE 4 (100%) 2 (100%) 1(100%) 3(100%) 1 (100%)
Mr. Cui Liguo ERELE 4(100%) 2 (100%) 1(100%) 3 (100%) 1 (100%)
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 4 (100%) 2 (100%) 1 (100%) 3(100%) 1 (100%)
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Risk Ma

nac
AmEE

In accordance with the Group’s development strategy, the Group has
established a risk management system covering all the business
segments to monitor, assess and manage various risks in the
Group’s business activities.

The risk management system of the Group is established in line with
the global standard including the management of each business
unit, the risk management function of the Group and the internal
audit function.

The Board has identified the top risks of the Group and determined
how much risk the Board is willing to take to achieve the Group's
strategic objectives.
Management Policy based on the above risk and conduct regular

The Group has also prepared a Risk

review of operational and financial risks as reported by each
business unit. Each business unit is required to identify risks on a
day-to-day basis, to report any major risk to the Group.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and take into
account the management control and corporate oversight at Group’s
level, the Audit Committee and Internal Audit would map out a risk-
based internal audit plan each year.

The Board establishes or renews financial and credit facilities and
undertakes financial and credit transactions in accordance with the
financial policy of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

(1) Interest rate risk
The Group's working capital and fixed assets investment, apart
from internal funds, rely on bank financing and issue of
convertible bonds. All convertible bonds were fully redeemed
by 2013. The Group currently does not have any bank
borrowing. The fluctuation of lending interest rates has no
effect to the Group and the Group does not have any risk in
this area.

(2) Currency risk

The Group’s currencies are mainly denominated in Hong Kong

dollar (“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Mongolian Tugrigs (“MT")

and United States dollar (“USD"). The consolidated financial

statements of the Group are presented in HKD. However, the

income of the Group is mainly in USD, therefore, the

functional currency of the Group is set in USD. The Group has

to assess the fluctuations of the exchange rates of USD

against HKD, RMB and MT.
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me nt (continued)
 EABEEe

(A) USD vs HKD

HKD has a linked exchange rate system with USD. The
exchange rate has been kept for many years. Therefore
the risk in this area is relatively small. However, the
Group needs to consider the effect if the system is
removed. Nevertheless, the Group’s income and payment
to foreign suppliers are in USD which can compensate
the exchange risk should the system is removed.

(B) USD vs RMB

The Group has established an office in Beijing, its
expenses are paid in RMB. In 2017, the exchange rate of
RMB increased about 6.5% against USD. The annual
budget of Beijing office is approximately HK$4,000,000.
At 31st December, 2017 the Group had bank deposit of
approximately HK$2,232,000 denominated in RMB. The
exchange rate risk effect in RMB is insignificant to the
Group.

(C) USD vs MT
The exchange rate of MT against USD dropped
approximately 2.4% in 2017. The inflation rate in
December 2017 in Mongolia was approximately 6.4%.
The bank deposit of Mongolian project is mainly in USD.
The Mongolia office settles its expenses in MT.
Therefore, the fluctuation of exchange rate of USD
against MT did not have any negative effect to the
Group in 2017. The fixed assets of Mongolian project are
recorded in USD, so there has been little effect in
exchange rate. The amounts of payables and receivables
of Mongolian project which are denominated in MT are
relatively small, so as the exchange rate risk in this area.

(3) Counterparty exchange rate risk
The buying and selling of natural uranium transactions of the
Group are denominated in USD, therefore the Group does not
have any risk in foreign currency exchange in business
transactions.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

(1

(2)

30

Concentration risk

Currently, the income of the Group is only derived from the
natural uranium products trade. Of the projects in hand, the
production of Somina’s uranium mine has been suspended and
the mine is under maintenance care; the Mongolian uranium
project is still at the stage of application of mining license, no
products will be available in the near future.

The Group has taken initiatives to investigate in the nuclear
power related business. To cooperate with the business
development of its holding company, the Group will look for
opportunities to expand its business activities. The Group will
also participate in the natural uranium market events to obtain
latest market information and enlarge the suppliers and
customers list, avoiding the reliance on a small number of
trading partners.

Credit risk

The Group mainly confronted with credit risk resulting from
trade debtors that arising from sale of goods to customers.
The Group established credit policies and procedures to
analyse and identify the credit risks, set appropriate credit
limits and controls, monitor the risks on timely basis by means
of reliable management information systems. The Group
performs regular updates to enhance the credit policies in
order to cope with the changes in markets and practice of
credit risk management.

Individual credit assessments are performed on customers to
determine the applicable credit limits and terms. Regular
review on credit limits and terms are performed in order to
ensure those are comparable to the credit standing of

customers and the latest business environments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang Chaodong, aged 53, joined The Fifth Research and
Design Institute of Nuclear Industry (“Fifth Nuclear Institute”) in
1987 and was promoted to principal in 2005. He also acted as vice
secretary of Party Leadership Group of Fifth Nuclear Institute.
Mr. Yang was transferred to China Nuclear Power Engineering Co.,
Ltd (“Nuclear Power Engineering”) as vice general manager in 2008
and also became vice secretary of Party Leadership Group of Nuclear
Power Engineering in 2009. Since 2012, he was transferred and now
acts as the Chairman and secretary of Party Leadership Group of
China Zhongyuan Engineering Co., Ltd “Zhongyuan Co.”). Mr. Yang
is also a director of Xie He Kong Co., Ltd (“XHK"). Fifth Nuclear
Institute, Nuclear Power Engineering, Zhongyuan Co. and XHK are
subsidiaries of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Mr. Yang had been a
delegate of the Hai Dian District, Beijing, PRC for The National
People’s Congress from 2011 to 2016. Mr. Yang has obtained a
bachelor degree in Environmental Engineering in 1987 and a master
degree in Executive Master of Business Administration in 2013 from
School of Environment, Tsinghua University and Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University respectively. He was qualified as a
senior research engineer and has obtained qualifications for
Registered Utility Engineer in the PRC.

Executive Director

Mr. Bai Donghai, aged 57, joined China National Nuclear
Corporation 813 Factory (2 L% /\— =) (“CNNC813") in 1986
and worked as manager, vice department head and department
head of its finance department. Mr. Bai was transferred to Shanghai
Nuclear Puyuan Corporation (E&FRZAEEAGR A A]) (“Puyuan”)
and worked as assistant to general manager and vice chief
accountant in 2001. In 2010, he was transferred to China National
Nuclear Corporation (Shenzhen) Ltd (RYlH =B H R A 7)
("CNNCSZ") and worked as a vice general manager. Mr. Bai is also
a Director of XHK and CNNC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. ("CNNC
Leasing”). CNNC813, Puyuan, CNNCSZ, XHK and CNNC Leasing are
subsidiaries of CNNC, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Mr. Bai graduated from Shanxi Broadcasting University
(BrPEE EIEEMHR AE) in Business Administration in 1986 and
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, School of Continuing Education (/&
RIBABHEKEEBR) in Accounting in 2008. He was qualified as a
senior accountant in the PRC.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Zhihuang, aged 45, is a general manager of China National
Nuclear Corporation (Shenzhen) Limited (FIJI|F % EE AR Q7))
("“CNNCSZ"). He joined Shenzhen Iron Eagle Plastics Company (&3l
HEBRBMAAR) (“SIE”) © a member company of CNNCSZ - in
1994 as technician, vice manager and manager. He was transferred
to CNNCSZ as vice supervisor of the general manager office of
CNNCSZ in 2008. He then worked as investment manager of
CNNCSZ in 2011 and was promoted to vice general manager of
CNNCSZ in 2016. During 2013 to 2016, Mr. Li worked as the
general manager of CNNC Nuclear Power Service Co, Ltd (F#%%E
%ERBE AR AR) ("NPS”) and XHK. During the period from June
to November 2017, he worked as vice president of the Company
and was in charge of the trading business of the Group. CNNCSZ,
SIE, NPS and XHK are subsidiaries of CNNC, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from School of
Mechatronics & Vehicle Engineering, Chongging Jiaotong University
(EERBASHEEEHITIZLM) with a bachelor degree in
Vehicle Engineering in 1994.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 70, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Ltd, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as an
independent non-executive director of CK Asset Holdings Ltd
(formerly known as “Cheung Kong Property Holdings Ltd"”) (stock
code: 1113), Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Ltd
(stock code: 215), New World Department Store China Ltd (stock
code: 825), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Ltd (stock code: 337),
CK Infrastructure Holdings Ltd (formerly known as “Cheung Kong
Infrastructure Holdings Ltd"”) (stock code: 1038), TOM Group Ltd
(stock code: 2383), Skyworth Digital Holdings Ltd (stock code: 751),
all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent director of BTS Group Holdings
Public Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand. Mr. Cheong has over 40 years of experience in securities
industry. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics)
degree from Chelsea College, University of London and a Master of
Science (Operational Research and Management) degree from
Imperial College, University of London.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continuved)

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 48, is currently a founding partner and
attorney of Guantao Law Firm, a law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has
been practicing law since 1993. Mr. Cui founded Guantao Law Firm
in 1994. He has over 20 years of experience in legal sector. Mr. Cui
has served as an adjunct professor of the China University of
Political Science and Law and also served as the assessor of the
Interim Measures for the Qualification Accreditation of Enterprise
Annuity Fund Management Institutions since 2010. Mr. Cui is also
an independent non-executive director of APT Satellite Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 01045), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, an independent director of China National Software
& Service Co., Ltd. (P BIEEF R B 1T iR i 1D B BR A A)) (stock code:
600536), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is
also a member of the Finance & Securities Committee of All China
Lawyers Association; a vice general secretary of the Chamber of
Financial Street; and the legal counselor in the internal control
group of securities issuing of Guodu Securities Co., Ltd. and Bohai
Securities Co., Ltd.. Mr. Cui was an independent director of SUFA
Technology Industry Co., Ltd.,, CNNC (FFZ#RE R E XKD AR
‘A A]) (stock code: 000777), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Cui graduated from the China University of
Political Science and Law with a bachelor degree in laws in 1991.
He also holds a master degree in laws from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 48, currently serves as assistant of general
manager of Beijing Zhongguancun Dajie Securities sales department
of China Great Wall Securities Co., Ltd. (R ESRHDAER LT, a
company Mr. Zhang joined since 1994. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years
of experience in the securities industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Renmin University of China in 1996, major in commercial and
economic management. Mr. Zhang holds the qualification of

settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 59, is the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in
November 2008. He had over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Li is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Li is a graduate of Imperial College of the

University of London and holds a Bachelor of Science degree.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, an associate and a joint
operation are set out in notes 32, 14 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements. The market and business review are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 48.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$411,775,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Yang Chaodong (appointed on 21st March, 2017)
Mr. Du Yunbin (resigned on 21st March, 2017)

Executive directors

Mr. Bai Donghai (appointed on 13th November, 2017)

Mr. Xie Jiajie (appointed on 5th June, 2017 and resigned on
13th November, 2017)

Ms. Wang Ying (resigned on 13th November, 2017)

Mr. Gao Shangxiong (resigned on 30th April, 2017)

Non-executive director
Mr. Li Zhihuang (appointed on 15th January, 2018)
Mr. Xu Shouyi (resigned on 13th November, 2017)
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Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

In accordance with Article 95 and Article 112 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Bai Donghai, Mr. Li Zhihuang,
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry and Mr. Cui Liguo will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
12th November, 2017. Mr. Bai Donghai has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing 13th
November 2017. Upon agreement of both parties the
abovementioned service contracts shall continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving to the other party not less than
three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2017, none of the directors nor their associates
had any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the *“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted on 11th December, 2002 (“2002
Share Option Scheme”) was expired and terminated on 11th
December, 2012. A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 3rd June, 2013 (“2013 Share Option Scheme”) and its
particulars are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share option had been granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme since their
adoption.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE
OPTIONS” above, at no time during the Year was the Company or

any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
B R & 18 5%
CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited

("CNNC Overseas”) (Note)
hRZE N EERAR AR (TR EEIN) ()
China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CUC") (Note)
FEIEZ AN EERR AR (B ()
China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (Note)
FREZIXEEARARA(THZEER]D M)

NGIE: £

AL $

NGIE: £

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

e pO rt (com‘/nued)
EREEE

BARGBHEFZZH

B EX R — e REEI  RRFH
HEMERAR - WEBARXFAERMEAR
BP0 B R L B BT SZ AR &
ﬁfi$"ﬂ§$7%§ﬁ%)\$“ﬂ‘k&ﬂﬁﬂt
ENE R 2 B S E S BRGNS

EENREXEHZER

BEAARBDREERMERAF - KHEAF
SRS EMBERARFLEARARREFTERE X
BMEEEEARDE LERBHNRFRIAF
EREAERDARR -

FERE
RZZT—+tFE+_A=+—8 AQARE
BHEMRPEROEIBETEZETEREE
MBS UTREEMNEERQRBRAADF
BERTRATHEEEAEZRAR -

¥a
FATBEREEEF0OITZEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
shares held

Fifs BT
LiEiRHE

the Company
EXABEETT
BRAEESE

326,372,273 66.72%
326,372,273 66.72%
326,372,273 66.72%

Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned
by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2017.
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PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS, EMPLOYEES AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s immediate and long-term goals.
Information about major customers is disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group's purchases were made
from a number of suppliers. The Group intends to seek and
negotiate with major uranium product traders in the market with a
view to expand its supplier and customer base. So far as the
directors are aware, at no time during the Year have the directors,
their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the major suppliers and

the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
customers of the Group.

The Company creates a framework for motivating staff and an

formal communication channel in order to maintain healthy

relationships with its employees and other stakeholders.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
engaged in uranium resources business and one of its main
objectives is to become an environment friendly corporation.
Minimizing in consumption of resources and adopt of environmental
best practices across the Group’s businesses are the commitment of
the Group to conserve and improve the environment. The Group
shall make every endeavour to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste

reduction.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to complying with the requirements under
the Companies Law (Revised) under the laws of Cayman Islands, the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the SFO under the laws
of Hong Kong. The subsidiaries in Mongolia are also committed to
complying with the requirements under the Law of Mongolia.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every
director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has taken out
and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout the Year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Chaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2018
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to
111, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st December, 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

judgment, were of most significance in our

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter
FEETEIA

Impairment assessment of exploration and
evaluation assets

B RREFIEEEZ HAEFG

We identified the impairment assessment of
exploration and evaluation assets as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the significant judgments made by
management in performing the impairment assessment
of the assets.

BM#EMNOREEFEEEZREN B RBAREGF
HoAREBERAYEBGAMBHRERBELN ML
BIREHETREERENHHEAHE -

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's exploration
and evaluation assets in relation to uranium mining in
Mongolia (“Mongolian uranium resources project”)
amounted to HK$210,709,000 and represented 29%
of the Group’s total assets.

R-E—+F+_A=+—H BEEBEAMEEIH
REEE((XHHEREE D 2HEERFHEEASE
#210,709,0007C * £ BEEBEBLEEZ29% °

Under HKFRSs, exploration and evaluation assets shall
be assessed for impairment when facts and
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
exploration and evaluation assets may exceed its
recoverable amount.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAOME A HARESRETEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
exploration and evaluation assets included:

R EFEEE ZRENE  HAMBTHELE
eI

o Discussing with management the progress of the
Mongolian uranium resources project and
examining the minutes, and reviewing

correspondences and other supporting documents

in relation to the Group’s negotiation and
communication with the government officials of

Mongolian authorities;

e HEEERZRIHERABZEELRELARMR
BERERILAAERRFABRZEZRERR
ZEHELE K REMERXX

o Obtaining legal advice from the Group’s external
Mongolian legal adviser on status of the Group’s
application for the mining licenses, any change in
regulatory requirements in Mongolia that would
adversely affect the application of the mining
licenses and the validity of the Group’'s
exploration licenses;
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Key audit matter

B EIR

As disclosed in notes 4 and 13, the management
performed an impairment assessment of the
exploration and evaluation assets and has engaged an
independent valuer to perform the valuation for
assessment. The recoverable amount is estimated using
fair value less costs of disposal which requires
significant degree of judgment by management in
selecting the valuation techniques and applying key
assumptions and inputs to the impairment assessment
model, including uranium prices and measured
resources from the uranium mines, adjusted by the
measured and indicated price multiple, which is
determined with reference to the market comparable
projects, taking into account the recent negotiation
and consensus with the Mongolian authorities,
regulatory requirements in Mongolia and the
arrangement for the Group’s mining licenses. The
management considers that no impairment is required
in respect of the exploration and evaluation assets as
at 31st December, 2017.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAOME A HARESSRETEE

° Understanding the Group’s impairment assessment
process, including the valuation techniques
adopted and the key assumptions and inputs
used; and

e TH BESBEZRBENGHBRE BERAFGHR
iy B AV BE S R AR S A BRI - 2

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer and verifying
their qualifications;

o HEBUFEMMBEN EORFBEALRE
EMPINERER -

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs used by the independent
valuer with the involvement of our internal
valuation expert.

e FAEBEUNEMRANERBRRERGABEZA
B REREMAANSFEERZE-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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: port (continued)

B8R4 )

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29th March, 2018
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017  #;

2017 2016
—E—tF = —NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Revenue WA 5 652,060 189,429
Cost of sales #HE KA (637.830) (204,537)
Gross profit (loss) EF (18) 14,230 (15,108)
Other income, gains and losses Emlt A W= KkEE 6 4,705 3,097
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (850) (546)
Administrative expenses TERAX (17,828) (15,635)
Profit (loss) for the year FRE M (E18) 8 257 (28,192)
Other comprehensive income HizmkA
Item that will not be reclassified to ~ T B EH P HE B
profit or loss: LA -
Exchange differences arising on BREREINEEELY
translation to presentation currency  JE N E%8 3,566 190

Total comprehensive income (expense) KA &% B A FE{5FER
for the year attributable to owners 2EBARAIZ) RBE
of the Company 3,823 (28,002)

Basic earnings (loss) per share FlaF (EE) 11 HKO.1 cent (HK5.8 cents)
7 #0.141 (15 .81l)
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At 31st December, 20177 R=-ZT—+F+=-A=+—

2017
—T—tF T — N
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEETIT BT T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB KR 12 15,715 17,781
Exploration and evaluation assets HREFHEE 13 210,709 207,918
226,424 225,699
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 16 179,670 108,500
Trade and other receivables and JEWE SRR KR HA
prepayments JE W 3R 3B A K2 FE A
RIE 17 74,553 172,929
Bank balances and cash RITEREE 2 18 247,743 285,020
501,966 566,449
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables and ERE SRR K
accruals E b sRIE U &
FEET R 19 158,622 226,175
Amount due to an intermediate JEAS — R AR R AR
holding company NS 20 1,907 1,801
Amount due to ultimate holding JE A & 4R A A )
company FRIE 20 2,678 2,407
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE R & R 8 A A
RIE 20 117 522
Income tax payable FERTFRS L 19,360 19,360
182,684 250,265
Net current assets RBEEZFE 319,282 316,184
Net assets EEFHE 545,706 541,883
Capital and reserves BEREHE
Share capital A& 7 21 4,892 4,892
Reserves f#1E 540,814 536,991
Equity attributable to owners of AXTE#HH AEE
the Company B 545,706 541,883

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 111 were HA8EIMEAZHEAMBHREER=ZZ—N
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on H#=A -+ HhBKHEZHI AR FED

29th March, 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: B WHTINEEREEE
Yang Chaodong Bai Donghai

BEE BERE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EFE
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For the year ended 31st December,

At 1st January, 2016 RZE—RF

2017 &%

Share
capital
&
HK$'000
BETT
(Note 21)
(Htzr21)

SF—tEt-ASt-ALER

NE
premium
T it (R

HK$'000

Capital

reserve
BXRE
HK$'000

BB

Non-
distributable
reserve
FURRbEE
HK$'000
BETT
(Note 22)
(Fit£22)

Merger
reserve

Bl
HK$000

BB

Translation

reserve
B
HK$'000

BB

Accumulated
losses
2iBR
HK$'000

BETT

Total

a4

HK$'000

BB

—-A—H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,299 (409,649) 569,885
Loss for the year FRER — — — — - - (28,192)  (28,192)
Exchange differences  HREFEA 2
arising on translation  [EX Z — — — — — 190 — 190
Total comprehensive ~ ERZERA
income (expense) (%) 88
for the year — - - - - 190 (28,192) (28,002)
At 31st December, RZE—RE
2016 T-A
=t+-8 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,489 (437,841) 541,883
Profit for the year EREF — - - - — - 257 257
Exchange differences ~ HREFELZ
arising on translation ~ EXZF - - - - - 3,566 — 3,566
Total comprehensive ~ FREEUA
income for the year &% — - - — — 3,566 257 3,823
At 31t December, i 3
2017 T-A
=t+-H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 12,055 (437,584) 545,706
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HEZZT

—T—tF

HK$°000
BT

—tETZA=+-BLEE

— A
HK$'000
BT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KBTS
Profit (loss) before taxation B B AT @ A (BT 18) 257 (28,192)
Adjustments for: KA
Depreciation of property, W WEREZEITE
plant and equipment 2,190 2,578
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - KERRE
plant and equipment 2 BB 54 430
Interest income F B A (3,636) (2,214)
Operating cash flows before movements EBEESEEA 2
in working capital KERESME (1,135) (27,398)
Increase in inventories FEEMN (70,214) (79,342)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other JEWE 5 ERE &ﬁ’rlﬂr’éqﬁl
receivables and prepayments FRIA LA R 78 5 5R18
B (3 ) 99,244 (168,465)
(Decrease) increase in trade and JENEZER R EM
other payables and accruals JE NP FRIE A R BB BT R
O 2> 1840 (68,846) 209,881
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REgEEET 2
REFHE (40,951) (65,324)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES WEEE
Interest received B UF B 3,636 2,214
Additions of exploration and evaluation assets A& #E KT HEE (1,248) (1,950)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BE LK (56) (327)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment Fr 18 3038 — 87
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES KERE LS
REFR 2,332 24
FINANCING ACTIVITIES [ EE)
(Repayment to) advance from fellow (BB)kadNiERAR
subsidiaries 2B (409) 401
Advance from ultimate holding company REABREERRR 22K 253 934
Advance from an intermediate holding BERERERARZER
company 93 205
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING (AE)RERMEFS 2
ACTIVITIES H& 558 (63) 1,540
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RekREFEY
EQUIVALENTS WA F R (38,682) (63,760)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT ERARERREEEY
FORWARD 285,020 348,778
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE INEERE S s B
CHANGES 1,405 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RekReEEWHEE -
CARRIED FORWARD, represented by RERITA R RIR 2K
bank balances and cash 247,743 285,020
hRZEBRAERAR —ZE—tEFiH 51



For the year ended 31st December, 2017 &

52

B

GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company is China
Uranium Corporation Limited and B T2 £ @ AR A 7
(China National Nuclear Corporation “CNNC” and formerly
known as “HBIfZ T EBE A F]"), a state-owned entity in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“US$"”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries

(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
exploration and trading of mineral properties.

CNNC International Limited 2017 Annual Report
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing activities; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 28. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 28, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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For the year ended 31st December, 20177 HEZE=ZT—tF + A=+ —BLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continuea)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss;

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continuea)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (ontinved)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31st December, 2017, the directors
of the Company anticipate that following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

All financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same basis as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon the application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.

The Group expects to apply the simplified approach to
recognise lifetime expected credit losses for its trade
receivables and therefore recognise on impairment allowance
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Based on the
assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by
Group as at 1st January, 2018 would not be materially
different as compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade receivables. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would increase
the opening accumulated losses at 1st January, 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for

15 was issued which establishes a single
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective. The core
principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a

5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price
o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continuea

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods.

Except those mentioned above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs may have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 & & =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations”. The financial statements of
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

3.

TRRERER QA

e ntS (continued)
1R R MY A )

—tETZA=+-BLEE

FEETBRw

ﬁ’;‘ﬂy“ﬁ&"ﬁziﬂﬁ
BERARAKEREEATENZ
BER -BARENDARZ2EARKRE
2 B 755 T 48 R BUROR TE T IR 1 =X
HEEHZERRE -

}

MW

BMERNRZEBREERBENKRA
VE@#&WA%?%A%Fﬁ%

CERE(SEB) BEARBIED
%%’%ﬁHﬁﬂTﬂ%%&ﬁ(ﬁﬁuB
1) BIBEE BB REERESRI51E
HEFRBEERKIELEERIA
R AR EEZBERRZY
BHREDREAEERRBEUBRT
ZRGREHMEAEMRRZ €K
ERE-BEERE RBEEQRZ
BB R VIRR AR A B iR &
ReWREERERNEE RS
ARIZEFEEMEZEREELF
B-FAEBEEHBE QR ZERE
BAEERZHE B2 ER (PEE
BEERAEEEHE AR ZREF
P —HMo2E@EHER)  A5E
RIFEREBR 2 E— 2 EE - BH
BIEZERENEAEEEBRZEE
FHTEETRREZBERRAIMG 2
RIBEAR -

REERETR R —RBERAEH
HEERRZRERBEIAANK-
RUEE—FKBERR 2RER RE
P 7 7R 7 5 B 4 1 4 B T AT A
BEMRABzZAFFEZEMEZRET
RABE Yt AREZE@E-
REFFER AEEREATHRE
ENABZAFFEBHEERNNZ
TRZ%E e RERE ZHHEANE
RBRARER -

—E=—tF55% 61

“.p‘

-

2




Notes to the

)

62

e

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE=ZT—+tF+ A=+ —HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in an associate (continuea)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when

decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in a joint operation (continued)

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operation, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of returns
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
is the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

applicable, which rate that exactly discounts the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

statement of financial
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditure incurred in the search
for natural resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those

resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.
These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification, and any impairment loss is recognised in profit

or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the
(including any
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the

entire consideration lump-sum upfront
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case,
the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from °profit for the year’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, and interest in a joint operation, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
in other

current and deferred tax are also recognised

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
assets or financial

value of the financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time

of initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables

below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a collective
basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amounts due to intermediate holding company, ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (ontinvea)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually and assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever
one of the following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the
list is not exhaustive):

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or will
expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and
the Group has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

. sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset
is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever

the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis.
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

Revisions to accounting estimates are

revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key estimation and assumptions
concerning the future that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year and critical judgements that the
directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

U N C E RTAI NTY (continued)

Impairment assessment on exploration and
evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may exceed the recoverable amount. As detailed in
note 13, the Group owns a number of exploration licenses
included in exploration and evaluation assets with carrying
values of approximately HK$211 million in Mongolia for
uranium mining which are subjected to Mongolia’s Law on
Nuclear Energy and Mongolia’'s Law on Implementing
Procedures of the Law on Nuclear Energy being effective on
15th August, 2009 (collectively referred to as the “New
Laws”). Under the New Laws, the Mongolia Government has
right to take ownership without payments of either (i) not less
than 51% of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolia
subsidiaries if the Mongolia Government’s funding was used to
determine the resource during exploration, or (ii) not less than
34%
subsidiaries if the Mongolia Government's funding was not

of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolia
used to determine the resource during exploration. The Group
commenced negotiating with the relevant Mongolian
authorities in respect of the implementation of the New Laws
from 2010 and consensus has been reached between the
Group and the relevant Mongolian authorities that a joint
venture will be established for holding the Group’s mining
licenses, which are currently under application, with the
Mongolia Government holding 51% of the equity interest of
the joint venture. Upon the completion of establishment of the
joint venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the
carrying amount of the Group’s exploration and evaluation
assets will be transferred to the joint venture by way of a
shareholder loan. However, the timing of obtaining the mining
licenses is uncertain and if the application of the mining
licenses is not approved due to the New Laws, the Group
might incur a significant impairment loss on the exploration
and evaluation assets and there might have a significant
decrease in net assets of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

U N C E RTAI NTY (continued)

Impairment assessment on exploration and
evaluation assets (continued)

The management of the Group determined the recoverable

amount of exploration and evaluation assets based on fair
value less costs of disposal which requires significant degree of
judgment by management in selecting the valuation techniques
and applying key assumptions and inputs to the impairment
assessment model. Details of the assessment have been set out
in note 13. Where the recoverable amount determined is less
than expected by the management, a material impairment loss
may arise.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. The
Group currently organises its operations into two operating
divisions, which also represent the operating segments of the
Group for financial reporting purposes, namely trading of
mineral property and exploration and trading of mineral
properties. They represent two major lines of business engaged
in by the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

o Trading of mineral —  trading of uranium
property
o Exploration and trading —  exploration and trading

of mineral properties of uranium

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

4,

e ntS (continued)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(continued)

The following is an analysis for the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by operating and reportable
segment:

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

KA B DEBEE

AEBEROFELLEEB 2 BMARE
BRERREESHEDZOMAOT :

8EZ-_F—tE+=-H=+—
BilEEE

Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties Consolidated
B8 HRREE
WENR WEME e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
EBETR EETR EBTR
Segment revenue 73 & WA 652,060 — 652,060
Segment profit (loss) 7 7B A (B518) 14,326 (5.351) 8,975
Interest income e U A 3,636
Central administration costs  H R 17 BB AN (12,354)
Profit before taxation B B4 Al A 257

For the year ended 31st December, 2016

8EZ-_F—R"E+=-HA=+-—
BiIEE

Exploration

Trading of and trading

IEE of mineral
property properties Consolidated

_a o B3R R
BEYZE EEWHE ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT S BT I
Segment revenue S EUA 189,429 — 189,429
Segment loss o EB S 18 (15,227) (2,459) (17,686)
Interest income A B WA 2,214
Central administration costs — H d2 {7 E p% Z< (12,720)
Loss before taxation M B RS 1B (28,192)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)
Revenue of the Group represents amounts received or
receivable arising from the sale of uranium.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss
from) each segment without allocation of interest income and
central administration costs. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

2l entS (continued)
% 3R 3 Y & )

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

KA B DEBEE

AEBRAELEMERZ D WHE
WEERA -

BANH T3P E - LB RE 2 BET R
BERK B REAR - 2 8% A (8
BIEEoBMmEL SN (BE) T2
EMBWA R R RITEAARZDE
ST ETE IR D B R A 0 B RER
MAEXELERRAZRIAEER -

NHMEERAER
AEEAEREBRERREE S H
BAZHMmT :

2017 2016
—T—tE
HK$000 HK$’'000
EBETR ok
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HEEE
— Trading of mineral property — KREBEME 249,675 274,987
— Exploration and trading of mineral — WRREE
properties EY 231,888 233,599
481,563 508,586
Unallocated corporate assets KB ARIEE 246,827 283,562
Consolidated assets HEAE 728,390 792,148
LIABILITIES B&E
Segment liabilities NEEE
— Trading of mineral property — R EEME 144,152 213,118
— Exploration and trading of mineral — WIRREE
properties BEME 15,710 15,398
159,862 228,516
Unallocated corporate liabilities Kol AREE 22,822 21,749
Consolidated liabilities mAeAE 182,684 250,265
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80

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o Segment assets include property, plant and equipment,
exploration and evaluation assets, inventories, trade and
other receivables and prepayments and bank balances
and cash which are directly attributable to the relevant
reportable segment.

o Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and
accruals and amounts due to an intermediate holding
company, ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries which are directly attributable to the relevant
reportable segment.

Other segment information

KA B DEBEE

DWMEERER®
RERSBRREA RS BHARD

E B

HUEERENBERD BEE
Bisz % BEREE DR
RAGRE GR- HER S
KR A M IR DA R TR 3
RRTHEBRRS -

DEHBERRAREERDY MEE
FE1E 2 B B 5 Rk K K Bt B A
IR A K T R B e A o A 42
AR REERARRRAE R
il E/NCIE ST

Hith 53 B & F

2017

“¥-t%

Exploration

Trading of and trading

mineral
property
"
BEYE
HK$'000
BRI
Amounts included in the HESBEEY
measure of segment results DWEERTAZ
or segment assets: S8

Addition to non-current assets R EIFREEE —

Depreciation of property, mE - HE K&

plant and equipment ZHE —
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BE KK

plant and equipment B2EE —

of mineral
properties Unallocated Total

BRERES
& E % K st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

EBTR EBTR EBTR

1,270 34 1,304
2,118 72 2,190
54 — 54
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

ne NS (ontinued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA RSEEE «

(continued)
Other segment information (continued) HihoEER
2016
—T-RF
Exploration
Trading of  and trading
mineral of minera
property properties Unallocated Tota
e BHRRLE
BEME BEME RDE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T T BB T T BB T T BB T T
Amounts included in the HESIEEY
measure of segment results DEEBEERFTAZ
or segment assets: &8
Addition to non-current assets REIEREEE — 2,139 138 2,277
Depreciation of property, mE - -BERREZ
plant and equipment e — 2,512 66 2,578
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEME  BERHR
property, plant and equipment & 2 E518 (U 25) — 517 (87) 430
Geographical information W EE&E
The Group's revenue by geographical market (irrespective of BEEFPMEMWEE D o NEBRHE
the origin of the goods) based on the location of the M5 (T E M RIR ) 2 YA Gt
customers are detailed below: N
Revenue
N
2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
EETT BT T
The United States EH 329,828 83,899
Switzerland It 228,452 —
Kazakhstan Me BE 5o HT3E 63,995 —
Others HA 29,785 —
Germany = B — 105,530
652,060 189,429
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA RSEEE

(continued)

Geographical information (continued) wEEE @

The Group's operation is principally located in the Mongolia REBFEASEH(ZTELERR) -
(country of domicile). Information about the Group’s non- AEFZEEREEZHWEE D 2
current assets by geographical location of the assets is detailed BEAMFINAT

below:

Non-current assets

ERBEE
2017 2016
—E—tF T —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Mongolia (country of domicile) SH(EZBLEERR) 226,294 225,531
Hong Kong O 130 168
226,424 225,699
Information about major customers fFHAXEEFR&EH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years BRAEBRIAI0%KRE R FRIE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are HEEHWALT :
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF = —NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EETT BT
Customer A BEPA 228,452 N/A!
Customer B =FB 180,282 N/A!
Customer C BPC 149,546 22,942
Customer D ZFD N/A 105,530
Customer E = PE N/A 60,957
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the ! HENRARABBAEMBIAZ10% °
Group.

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. Hug A\ - WEm R EIE

2017 2016
—®—tFE T A%

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AETIT

Included in other income, gains and losses Bl A Wz K EE

are the following: ERBENLT:
Interest income B WA 3,636 2,214
Net exchange gains JEH Wz 558 1,104 1,292
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entS (continued)
e

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and
the chief executive were as follows:

Directors’
fee

Exus

HK$'000
BE T

For the year ended
31st December, 2017

Executive directors (Note (iii)):
Mr. Bai Donghai (appointed

BEE-F—tF

+=RA=+-8
LERE

178 % (P L)) -

BREBEEMR-F

7. EEREENE

ENHENTEES RITERAESZ M
TWT -

Salaries and Discretionary
bonus Total
BIETEAL @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRE  BETR

allowances
FaRERN
HK$'000
BT

on 13th November, 2017) —tF+—A
(Note (ii)) +=8L1)
(Bf 25y ) 19 65 — 84
Mr. Xie Jiajie (appointed on HAEARERZE
5th June, 2017 and —t &R AHH
resigned on 13th EERZT—%
November, 2017) (Note (ii) F+—A+=H
B ) (B 3Gy 69 200 — 269
Ms. Wang Ying ITELZE(R=Z
(resigned on 13th —+tF+—A
November, 2017) +=BET)
(Note (i) (B 3EG)) 131 380 320 831
Mr. Gao Shangxiong REELEE(RZT
(resigned on 30th April, —tFmHA=T
2017) (Note (i)) B BEAE) (B 3E()) 50 144 288 482
Non-executive directors FEHITEE (HFEGY) ):
(Note (iv)):
Mr. Yang Chaodong BRAREE(RZZ
(appointed on 21st March, —tF=H
2017) (Note (ii)) —+—B L)
(Bf 2 i) ) 150 — — 150
Mr. Xu Shouyi (resigned on BRFEEERZE
13th November, 2017) —tFt+—H
+= BB 131 — — 131
Mr. Du Yunbin (resigned on HEBEWELE(RZT
21st March, 2017) —tF=A
(Note (i) “t+—BEF)
GE0) 50 — — 50
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors (Note (v)): GEIDE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, REBEE
Henry 200 — — 200
Mr. Cui Liguo EFIELE 200 — — 200
Mr. Zhang Lei REBEE 150 — — 150
1,150 789 608 2,547
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BHEZE-T—+HF+ A=+ —HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 7.
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EEREEME

Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary
fee  allowances bonus Total
EEHe HaRIH B8 1E 4L st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AET T AET T AETT ABT
For the year ended BE-_F—RE
31st December, 2016 +=-A=+-—H
LEE
Executive directors (Note (iii)): 1T = (BT REC)) -
Ms. Wang Ying (Note (i)) FEL L (M) 150 480 284 914
Mr. Gao Shangxiong (Note (i) = 1A 3 O A (BT REG) ) 87 235 — 322
Non-executive directors (Note (iv)): 3E#7TE = (M #E(v)):
Mr. Du Yunbin (Note (i) I, A (BT EEG)) 200 — — 200
Mr. Xu Shouyi RFREE 150 — — 150
Independent non-executive directors & JEHITEE
(Note (v)): (P EE(W))
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry RE KA 200 — — 200
Mr. Cui Liguo BB kA 200 — — 200
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 150 — — 150
1,137 715 284 2,136

Mr. Bai Donghai (2016: Ms. Wang Ying) is the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Notes:

(i) The directors’ fees for Ms. Wang Ying, Mr. Gao Shangxiong and Mr. Du Yunbin in
2017 and 2016 were paid or payable to CNNC Overseas and a fellow subsidiary by
the Company.

(ii) The directors’ fees for Mr. Bai Donghai, Mr. Xie liajie and Mr. Yang Chaodong in 2017
were paid or payable to a fellow subsidiary by the Company.

(iii) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(iv) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(v) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their

services as directors of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two individuals (2016: two individuals) were directors
of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosure set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2016: three) individuals were as follows:

: 1€ ntS (continued)

S EY A

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

EEREEME

AREZAABRBHEMALT =%
—E-RECR)ALARATE
F OREZMSHALXALZ R
B-BT=H(ZF—~%F: =ZR)A
trMemT -

2017
—F—-tF

2016

HK$’000
BT

HK$’000
BT

Salaries and other benefits I K H b 12 F 2,255 1,874
Retirement benefit schemes contributions B RAR A FT &84 50 24 31
2,279 1,905
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E— N
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAE BB AZ

Emoluments of the employees were within & E Bil& N F T 71|

the following bands: “ 5l

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ Z ##1,000,0007T 2 2

75 51,000,001 &
7 #1,500,0007T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during the year.

FA AKEYERATAESEHES
ERFMALINEAME EFRF
EMAREESMARNEER 2 RS
ABREE - MEESRNFARREL
] B <
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE-T—+HF+ A=+ —HILFE

8. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 8. FERHF(EBHE)

2017 2016
—FT—tH —E-RF

HK$000 HK$'000
BT AETT

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at 4 A3 | (B 1B) &K

after charging (crediting): (Gt A) 3% E -
Directors’ emoluments (see note 7) B (RHE7) 2,547 2,136
Other staff costs Hih B TRA 4,729 4,406
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RRAE A G B K
(see note 27) (R K7E27) 82 57
Total staff costs 8 TR A% 7,358 6,599
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration and &l : R E A E B K&
evaluation assets FEEEZSRE (785) (931)
6,573 5,668
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BERZHEZ
equipment e 2,190 2,578
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - KER
equipment (included in other income, HfE B R
gains and losses) (GFAEM A
Yz K g5 18) 54 430
Auditors’ remuneration = EAD BN & 1,400 1,372
Cost of inventories recognised as BRREAXZZFERR
an expense 637,830 204,537
Operating lease charges on land and THREFILEEHEE
buildings EA 1,190 2,609
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TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the

consolidated financial statements as the assessable profits were

wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)

for the year per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

e ntS (continued)
EELE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

BiIE

HREEEENMEFEOELERS
BE SNGEMBEHRRLEBEELE

BMETEE -

AFEERBHRGEBRRLEM2EK
SRARERREMN(ER) BERMT

2017
—F—-tF

2016

HK$°000
BETFT

HK$'000
BT

Profit (loss) for the year FRRF(EER) 257 (28,192)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate ERABNEHE16.5%
of 16.5% FEZBIE 42 (4,652)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARTMWA 2T
tax purpose BRE (785) (404)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AP ASZ 2
tax purpose e 1,049 617
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEEIE 2
%% & 479 4,439
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BAAFEERERTIE
previously not recognised ERoVBEE (785) —
Taxation for the year REEBIE — —

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$69,246,000 (2016: HK$71,101,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised for the year due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams. The tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

TRRERER QA

RREHE  AEBBEFTADAB
18 5 18 4969,246,0005% 7T (= & — /<
£ 71,101,000 7o) A 4 5K 85 R 2R 5
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Notes to t
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10. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the current
and prior years. The directors have determined that no
dividend will be paid in respect of the year ended 31st
December, 2017.

11. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

10.

11.

iR
RAFERBAFEASERMS 5
REEBEKRE -EEERETERE
E-T—+F+-_A=Z+—HILEFE
AR S o

BB (BE)
ARTHEE AN SRERRF (B
18) TR % T 5 MR A E

2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBETT ok e
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RRARIHEB AEIEER
owners of the Company i F) (B 18) 257 (28,192)

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes st E TR E N (EiE)~
of earnings (loss) per share Egclie =

489,168,308 489,168,308
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For the year ended 31st December, 20177 HZEZ=F

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

[ ents (continued)

SEL )

—tF+-A=t-ALER

12. W% - WERHRE

Plant and
machinery
Leasehold Mining and other Furniture Motor
improvements structure  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
RERKE
HEWERE BREZE WUREHRE HKARKE RE .y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
j ‘ BETT BETT BETT
CosT A
At 1st January, 2016 RZE-R
—A—A — 4,845 46,723 4,432 2,237 58,237
Exchange realignment R HE - 4 40 3 1 48
Additions NE 138 - 189 — — 327
Disposals e — — (1,994) (1,397) (747) (4,138)
At 31st December, 2016 RZT—R%F
TZA=+—-H 138 4,849 44,958 3,038 1,491 54,474
Exchange realignment EHHE - 36 333 19 11 399
Additions nE — — 2 34 — 56
Disposals e - - - - (67) (67)
At 31st December, 2017 RZT—+%
+ZA=+-H 138 4,885 45,313 3,091 1,435 54,862
DEPRECIATION il
At 1st January, 2016 RZBE—RE
—-A—-A — 1,365 32,098 3,425 816 37,704
Exchange realignment R HE — 2 27 2 1 32
Provided for the year FERBG 8 89 2352 115 14 2,578
Eliminated on disposals i & & £ 8 - — (1,477) (1,397) (747) (3,621)
At 31st December, 2016 RZT X%
TZA=+—-H 8 1,456 33,000 2,145 84 36,693
Exchange realignment EHHE - 11 253 12 1 277
Provided for the year EERA 49 79 1,984 69 9 2,190
Eliminated on disposals £ K4 $ - - - - (13) (13)
At 31st December, 2017 RZT—+%
TZA=+—-H 57 1,546 35,237 2,226 81 39,147
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31st December, 2017 ~ RZZ—+F
tZA=+-A 81 3,339 10,076 865 1,354 15,715
At 31st December, 2016  R-T—A#E
+ZA=+-H 130 3,393 11,958 893 1,407 17,781
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12.

13.

90

B

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, on a straight-line

basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements  Over the term of the leases or
5 years, whichever is the shorter
20 to 40 years

6%-20%

Mining structure

Plant and machinery
and other equipment

18%-33%

18%-25%

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION
ASSETS

=T T A=T HICHE

12.

13.

ME - BERRHE

bt BERREERB DIREM
AR F R AR R R R R E
B WERERATFRFERE

HEMERE HEFHNSF
(AR EHEBE)
A 20404
BE LB 6%-20%
Ko H At 58 A
EMEEE 18%-33%
aE 18%-25%

BRRFEEE

HK$'000
T

COST BN

At 1st January, 2016 R-ZZE—XF—H—H 205,786
Additions NE 1,950
Exchange realignment ME 5, FE B 182
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—RNF+ZA=+—H 207,918
Additions NE 1,248
Exchange realignment P 5 A & 1,543
At 31st December, 2017 RZE—tF+=ZA=+—H 210,709

The Group's exploration and evaluation assets were mainly
arising from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group Ltd.
during the year ended 31st December, 2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the New Laws came into force. Under
the New Laws, the Mongolia Government has the right to take
ownership without payment of either (i) not less than 51% of
the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolian subsidiaries if the
Mongolia Government’s funding was used to determine the
resource during exploration, or (ii) not less than 34% of the
equity interest in the Mongolian subsidiaries if the Mongolia
Government’s funding was not used to determine the resource
during exploration.

CNNC International Limited 2017 Annual Report
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13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION

ASSETS (continued)

The directors of the Company commenced negotiating with
the
implementation of various provisions under the New Laws

relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the
during the year ended 31st December, 2010. Based on
management’s discussions with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and the advice from its external Mongolian legal
adviser, the Group will have the right to apply for mining
licenses to mine or extract the resources identified in the
relevant areas covered by the exploration licenses. The Group
is currently in the progress of applying for mining licenses to
mine or extract the resources identified in the relevant areas
covered by these exploration licenses. In the opinion of
directors, there is no legal obstacle for application of such

mining licenses.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, consensus has

been reached between the Company and the relevant
Mongolian authorities that a joint venture will be established
for holding the mining licenses, which are currently under
application, with the Mongolia Government holding 51% of
the equity interest in the joint venture. Upon the completion
of establishment of the joint venture, the Group’s mining
licenses together with the carrying amount of the Group's
exploration and evaluation assets will be transferred to the
joint venture by way of a shareholder loan. In addition, the
Company has drafted the shareholders’ agreement, joint
venture agreement and memorandum and association of the
joint venture and has commenced negotiation on the detailed
terms of these documents with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and a pre-mining cooperation agreement was
signed on 26th June, 2012 to kick off the pre-mining

activities.

13.
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- | entS (continued)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE=ZZT—+tF+=-A=+—HLEFE

BERFEEEw

BE_Z—=ZF+_A=+—H1LF
ERN ARREEWmEERSE R
BERFEOTZEEXRMAEE R
BEEERBBAEHERZIMEE
INEHEZREERCZER  AKEHB
ERRBHRETAIE  EARKKE
AR B RFT Al B FTR & 2 R [E A
el BIR c N B IE R FHRET
A AR SERZE DR A
BRREZHEBHMERNAERNZE
R-BERR PREZEFFRRTAF
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13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION

92

ASSETS (continued)

A notice was previously received in January 2014 from the
relevant Mongolian authorities which mentioned that the joint
in 2014.
However, the establishment has been postponed due to

venture would be expected to be established

changes in government officials of relevant Mongolian
authorities in 2014, June 2016 and October 2017. Further
negotiations on the terms of the draft joint venture agreement
has been carried out with the new government officials of
relevant Mongolian authorities, and the finalisation of the joint
venture agreement is anticipated to be delayed to 2018 for
completion. The Group’s exploration and evaluation assets will
then be transferred to the joint venture by way of a
shareholder loan upon the completion of establishment of the
joint venture.

The Company has continued the negotiation with the relevant
Mongolian authorities and the directors are of the opinion
that the recent changes will not result in significant impact on
the consensus which has been reached previously. At 31st
December, 2017, the directors performed an impairment
assessment and re-assessed the recoverable amount of assets
based on fair value less costs of disposal, which is mainly
derived by using the market approach. The Group has
engaged an independent valuer to perform the valuation for
assessment.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has adopted the
comparable transaction method to calculate the value of the
assets and one of the key inputs to the method is the
measured resources from the uranium mines, adjusted by the
measured and indicated price multiple, which is determined
with reference to the market comparable projects. The valuer
has also applied an adjusting factor with reference to the
uranium prices. There was no change to the valuation
technique during the year. In addition to the valuation
assessment, the directors also take into consideration the
recent negotiation and consensus with the Mongolian
authorities, regulatory requirements in Mongolia and the
arrangement for the Group’'s mining licenses. The directors
considered the costs of disposal is minimal. The directors are
of the view that the recoverable amount of assets is not lower
than the carrying value of the assets and no impairment is
required in respect of the exploration and evaluation assets as
at 31st December, 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14. REBBE AT ZHER

2017 2016

—FT—tH —E-RF

HK$000 HK$’'000

EETR ok

Cost of unlisted investment EEMERE 2 KA 463,865 463,865

Share of post-acquisition losses and other FEAE IR E B R H A

comprehensive income 2mikA (463,865) (463,865)

Interest in an associate REE AT 2 Em — —
During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group AREBEBRBE-_ZTE-—ZTF+=A
acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik ST-HIEFESERKRE-—HEARE
S.A. (“Somina”) through the acquisition of a subsidiary known BEEERAR(TEEEE] 2 WE
as Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”). Somina is accounted A A] - WEESociété des Mines d'Azelik
for using the equity method in these consolidated financial S.A.([ SominaZx @l]) 237.2% % 7 #&
statements. At 31st December, 2017, the Group’s equity % o SominaA AR AR & B % ¥k & FK A
interest in Somina is pledged to a bank for certain banking BEEAE - R_ZT—tF+=A
facilities granted to Somina. =+—H A&EERSomina &z K

AEZEEBFROTOUANER T
Somina A& ZRITEE -

SELFR-F-AET A
T—B AEEZBEQARFEN

Details of the Group's associate as at 31st December, 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

A %

Attributable

Country of equity interest
registration held by Principal
Name of associate and operation Paid-up registered capital the Group activity
AERE P
BEATEZE H#MEREEZER CHEFEMERE FEIEIRE EE2XEHB
Somina Republic of Niger African Financial Community 37.2% Mining
Franc 500,000,000
Somina/A & EB® 500,000,0003E M & &4 37.2% WRBERFE
H[F B8A R

FREBAERAR —T—tFF%E 93



For the year ended 31st December, 2017

14.

15.

16.

94

ES

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (ontinved)

Due to the continued operating losses suffered over the years,
unfavourable market conditions for the sale of uranium and
insufficient cash flows for repayment of outstanding bank
borrowings, Somina has run into serious going concern
problems. The production of Somina has been suspended since
the first half of 2015 and it is highly uncertain whether

Somina will resume operation in the foreseeable future.

The directors of the Company considered the summarised

financial information of Somina is not presented as the
financial position of Somina has no material improvement
noted during the year that can support the reversal of the

impairment loss made in previous years.

INTEREST IN A JOINT OPERATION
The Group has a joint operation, XXEM LLC. The Group has a

50% share in the ownership of a power station in Mongolia.
The power station is designed for the provision of power line
support to the Group and the Joint Arrangement Parties. The
Group is entitled to 50% share of the revenue earned and
bears 50% share of the joint operation’s expenses.

INVENTORIES

=T T A=T HICHE

14. R EBEATIZHEELRE »

15.

16.

HRZFRBELEEE HESH
TRFEFERBRERTRIUEES
HiER1TE X > SominaRA A BB EHE
KA E - SominaR RN T —RF
¥ FRIEEE £S5 RA R RIK
EEEBETFERETHETIE -

KRG ESZRRBRE EFESomina A
Z B E R E R B R F RSominaR
B EAR N R B E RN E ARAT AT
FEBAFEZRERIE-

NREEEBZHER

KEBH —IHEEEBXXEM LLC ° &K
EEBESR L —HEERIS0%EE
B-ZBEMERTEAAEERER
ZHAHO A IRHEESTE - AE@EE
S A & % FT BB A Z250% 00
AEAEEB 250% XK °

EE

2017
—F—tF

2016

HK$'000
EETRT

HK$'000
T

Uranium concentrates & B 178,700 108,500
Electronic products BEFEmM 970 —
179,670 108,500
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

17. R B 5 IE & H fth FE U
ARIAL R AN RIE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

2017
—F—-tF

2016

HK$°000
BETFT

HK$'000
BT

18.

Trade receivables — aged 0 to 30 days EWE 5 RIE
— OH =Z30H 70,005 166,487
Other receivables H i fe W 5k 1B 4,244 3,810
Deposits paid BfE] & 120 110
Prepayments T8 FI8 184 2,522
74,553 172,929

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
its credit limits. Credit sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers

are reviewed regularly.

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers and presented the aged analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date. The trade receivables have been
fully settled subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.21% (2016: 0.01% to 1.57%) per
annum.

18.

TRRERER QA

EEMFMEP A AKEKTHE
EEPZEEEARYIBEEGCAR
B -AEBERAARFERTEHENE
FELHEREE - RTEFPHNEAR

AEEETHEHESEPIAMGEER
H RBSHMEREEZAMAEE
2IRWE SRR -FTARIE
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19.

20.

96

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date, and the breakdown of other
payables and accruals at the end of the reporting period:

5; E-—tE+ZA=T—-BHILEFE

19.

FE 4 B2 5 SR IE R H fth FE 1
IE LA R FE st R

UTARBE MR EANARLS
B 4 B 5 B KB B+ % L A A 3

I

BN ER RKAMA

2017
—F—-tF

2016

— N
HK$'000
AETIT

HK$°000
BETFT

Trade payables — aged 0 to 30 days FERE 58

— 0H &230H 141,357 210,190
Receipt in advance T8 Uk 5K I8 194 —
Other payables H th JE 1 5 IE 1,640 513

Other payable to the joint operator of FERE S EGREET
the joint operation (note) E (M) 13,288 12,705
Accruals & &t R 2,143 2,767
158,622 226,175

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 40 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

Note:  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.

AMOUNTS DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY/FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to an intermediate holding company,
ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. B&F
Number of ordinary shares Amount
EERYE &8
2017 2016 2017 2016
—%-tfE T RF Z¥-tE <—T—R¥
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ok
Ordinary shares of FREEEK0.01T
HK$0.01 each a1
Authorised: ETE
At 1st January and R—A—Bk
31st December +=ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 1st January and R—A—Bk
31st December TZA=+—H 489,168,308 489,168,308 4,892 4,892
22. RESERVES 22. fi#fE
The capital reserve mainly represents the deemed capital EABBIEERBE_ZT—ZF
contribution during the year ended 31st December, 2010. TZA=T—HLEFEHRERTEZ
The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount NAIDIKGEBER-ZEZE_F+=H
of the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a TR ETEBREA(SEBEA]F
group reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the MEBAR 2RO GERE-
“Group Reorganisation”).
The merger reserve represents the difference between the EHREBRERBEEEEARNEB QR
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the RAEEEFEAD LI E BRKR
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares REATETRNHEBE M ZEZRE -

issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

98

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant to a
resolution passed on 31st May, 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to eligible employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside eligible advisors
and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at the
discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the schemes
are subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the share option scheme of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 48,916,830 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date approving the 2013 Share Option
Scheme; and

(iii)  the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of such grant.
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23.

24.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company and will be at least the higher
of (i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares
of the Company for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; (ii) the closing price of the
ordinary shares of the Company on the date of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the scheme must be exercised
during such option period as may be determined and notified
by the directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme since their adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
annually. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
assess the annual budget prepared by management of the
Company. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. The directors of the Company also
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues,
dividend distribution as well as the issue of new debt.

For the year ended 31st December, 20177 HEZE=ZT—tF + A=+ —BLFE
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. &t TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) 2T ARAZER

2017 2016
—F—-tF

HK$°000
BETFT

HK$'000
AETIT

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash B K fE U 58
and cash equivalents) (BREASER®
EEY) 322,112 455,427
Financial liabilities SREHE
Amortised cost - ETIDIN 160,987 228,138

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amounts due to an intermediate holding
company, ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these

risks are set out below.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at 31st December, 2017 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

(b) EMEMEEBERBE

AEBZIESRITABERI
B 5 A N H Al EURIR - RTT
EHMRE BNBEZHALE
i FE A SR8 - A R A — B P o
ERAR - &RERAR LR
ZMBARIRIE - TXHIILE
TR T AR R REFEILE
JE\ B 2 BEER e

& & k&

AEBEZIZoRMEEBRERE
B 5 IR M CEL At FE WO IR A 2 R
THEBERE - R_F—tF
T-A=1+—8 " W& F 7 KeE
BITEEMLE AAKER SRS
ERRBEMEEMAARZER
EERRANGA M BRRERT

financial position. ReZEEERTE-
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of BREEERK  AEEETIERE

the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
directors of the Group consider that the credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

25. &€t T H»
(b) 2RtEMEEEHERBE

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 91%
(2016: 63%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer within the trading of
mineral property segment.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
exposure to bad debts and concentration risk is reduced.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk management
While most of the Group’s operations are
transacted in the functional currencies of the
respective group entities, the Group undertakes
certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently has not formulated
any hedging policies against its exposure to
currency risk. However, the Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

&)

1EE R =)
REBEHEESTRR  RE
BIREBREMEDBZEKE S
HBBRBRBREN%(ZZE — X
F:63% ) REREEEREP -

LSS - REER R E RAREH S
TR 8 ) & Y IR 2 AT [l R
ERE T AR E S B R TR
MEBRE BRI E  ARFE
ERR AEBAXZERRE
o E e 2 ORUE o
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T BROTEHRZEERRSA
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i 45 B B

() SMERERE EZ
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NEEEERZIEER
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MONEFEZRS - KK
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk management (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the end of both reporting
periods are as follows:

e et R W e

25. &R T B
(b) £REMREEBEERBR

()

45 JE B =)

() SR R E )
REBUUIINEFBEZEE
BEERE®AERWER
SR ZEEBEQDAT

HK$
B

MNT
E#ER
HK$'000
BET T

RMB
AR%
HK$'000
5% F 7T

HK$'000
5% F 7T

As at 31st December, 2017 R-ZF—+t#&
+=-—A=+—H
Assets BE 1,625 4,474 2,499
Liabilities atfE 1,523 13,406 4,702
As at 31st December, 2016 RZT—REF
+= A E‘i’
Assets BE 2,630 4,300 1,889
Liabilities =R 2,389 12,905 4,730
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The above foreign currencies denominated net AN ERSNESBEZ FE
assets/liabilities are insignificant to the Group. E/ABEHAEETAE
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented. RNeRA 8 F 2 ® =K
EDH
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FE &
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates AEEBZFEZESHERF
is mainly attributable to its bank balances which is EHNERTERTE
considered not significant to the Group. REAREEMSAETERK o
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.
The Group’s contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities are due within 90 days from the end of the

both reporting periods.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their fair values.

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the

reporting period, the Group had

outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases for rented premises

which fall due as follows:

25. &€t T H»
(b) 2RtEMEEEHERBE

26.

(c)

(&)

7B & £ B
REBRBHES AR - AEHE
BEERBBASRASSEY
BREBBRARRZAT LA
BAAEE 2 EEMBES R
ERSRERD2HE -

AEE 2 TR A A EEKIR
s HRIZRIOH A »

AF{H
CRMEERSMEBEZATED
AR &R B H AT R EERE
LEARZEEEXEE -

ARAREFRR REAWHKR
RNBBHERAT R SREE
EtmARREEREELQFER

s

Eo

HEHERIE

RBERR AEERERCADE
IV A BBEEERE R TAF
HEMTHrRkEERGRREEEN
FOREMT

2017
—F—-tF

2016

HK$°000
BETFT

HK$'000
BT

Within one year —FR 356 406
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFEERF

(BREEMF) 213 532

569 938

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the

Group for certain of its office. Leases are negotiated for a

terms of 1 to 3 years initially and rentals are fixed.

TRRERER QA
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 27. BREFIEI

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated
in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future years.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
Mongolia, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“the Schemes”) organised by the
Government of Mongolia whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at a rate of 11%-13% of
the eligible employees’ salaries. Contributions to the Schemes
vest immediately.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to
the relevant retirement benefit schemes is HK$82,000 (2016:
HK$57,000).
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28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount due
to an
intermediate

holding

company
FE& £+ — R & 4¢
ERATIRIE
HK$'000
BT T

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

entS (continued)
S BRRMHE e

28. ;n%iﬁ}ﬁibﬁﬁéiﬁﬁﬂ"]ﬁ

TRENAEEREETDHFELER
WMEPFE ERAS LIRS E
Ho-RMETBDAELRBENRSAE
ERABENARERGRERER
NOBERKERELTINRERE -

Amount due
to ultimate Amount due
holding to fellow
subsidiaries
FE f+ B 8 &
B A S RIBE
HK$'000

BT

company
et R
BERATRIE
HK$'000
e

At 1st January, 2017 RZTE—tF—H—H 1,801 2,407 522
Financing cash flows MERER 93 253 (409)
Foreign exchange translations HNEETE 3 T B 13 18 4
At 31st December, 2017 RZTE—tF

+=ZA=+—8 1,907 2,678 117

29. BAE R EE

The following transactions and balances were entered into UTXSGREHSBIRERNET IR

during the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting MEH RS AEE -

period respectively.

(i) Remuneration of directors and other (i) EERHEMTEETEER
members of key management =4 kS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRAESNEMTEERERES
management during the year was as follows: e T

2017
—F—-tF

2016
AN

HK$'000
AETIT

HK$°000
BETT

Short-term benefits 5 HE A 4,802 4,308
Post-employment benefits RK1RAE T 24 31
4,826 4,339

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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Notestot;.

RENBH

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BHEZE-T—+HF+ A=+ —HILFE

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continved)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances with PRC

government-related entities in the PRC
The Group operates in an economic environment
currently pre-dominated by entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC

government.

In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CNNC which is controlled by the PRC
government. The balances are disclosed in note 20.

The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are PRC government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that except as
disclosed above, transactions with other PRC government
related entities are not significant to the Group’s
operations.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group
paid rental and related expenses of HK$739,000 (2016:
HK$1,334,000) to the ultimate holding company, for its
office in Beijing, the PRC. The related party transaction
does not constitute a disclosed continuing connected
transaction as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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30. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Trading business in electronic products

On 11th January, 2018, the Group commenced the
business of trading in electronics products, including but
not limited to trading of liquid crystal displays, flash
drives, memory cards etc. (the “Business Update”).
Details of the Business Update are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 11th January,

2018.

Investments in CNNC Financial Leasing
Company Limited

On 12th March, 2018, the Group entered into the
transfer framework agreement with Xie He Kong
Company Limited (“XHK"”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the CNNC, in respect of the acquisition of
its approximately 12.0% interests in CNNC Financial
Leasing Company Limited (“CNNC Leasing”) for a
consideration of contribution rights subject to a cap of
RMB3 million.

in the
12th  March,

Details of the transaction are set out
announcement of the Company dated

2018.

Up to the date of the issuance of these consolidated

financial statements, this transaction is not yet

completed.

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE
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30. REMEEIR

(a)

(b)

TRRERER QA

EFERES

R-Z—N\F—A+—8 A%
ERREFERES BEET
BRESBERS BYERTE
FESS(EBRHFEMD « %
BEMAAFERR AR TR =
Z-N\F-A+-BREZA

%:o

RPZREHRERRAT
ZHE&E
WZZE—-—NF=ZA+=8B K&
E B ipmEa R A A (H M
B P REBEZEEZENS
NE BIEBEERDZE  RE
PEREHEBRAR ([HZHE
ENEMEAN12.0% - HE#
BB DA LR A R #3,000,0007T
R o

ZHHBHAEAARE N
E=A+-AFBEIAL -

EEMEEMBERRELA I
RHERBTHK

—z=—t55% 107



Notes to the
KA HBERR

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE-T—+HF+ A=+ —HILFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31. X AT MBRRAREER
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company at the (a) MB|MEHRARQRFGFERNE :
end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
—FT—tH —E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIEE 182,169 250,693
Amount due from a subsidiary Gl NGIE S 48,966 48,804
231,135 299,497
Current assets mENE E
Other receivables and prepayments o th B W SRIA A
AN 145 145
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W2 B BB 2 A 308 161,323 48,747
Bank balances and cash RITHBERS 154,593 261,436
316,061 310,328
Current liability NBEE
Other payables and accruals H A JE A FRIB A 2
FE T R K 1,490 956
Net current assets mENEEFE 314,571 309,372
Net assets BE&FE 545,706 608,869
Capital and reserves B AR R %
Share capital [N 4,892 4,892
Reserves {1 540,814 603,977
545,706 608,869
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I ntS (continued)
R 3% M &)

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #HEZE-T—+F+ A=+ —HILFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31. KATHBRA KRR
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
(b) Statement of changes in equity (b) BEXREHR

Non-
Share Share Capital distributable Translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

k% Riaf BFEE FIIREE REEE  RABA @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

EETT BRI BETR ARTT  EETR AT AETR

At 1st January, 2016 RZF—AF

-A—-H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (394,852) 608,409
Profit and total ERENR
comprehensive 2EMA
income for the &g
year — — — — — 460 460
At 31t December, RZE-RF
2016 T-A
=t+-8 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (394,392) 608,869
Loss for the year EREE — — - - - (64,171)  (64,171)
Exchange differences ~ BEFEEZ
arising on ERER
translation — - — - 1,008 — 1,008
Total comprehensive ~ ERZERA
income (expense) (Ax)a®
for the year — - — - 1,008 (64,171) (63,163)
At 31st December, RZZT—+&
2017 T4
o = 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 1,533 (458,563) 545,706
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Notes to t :
RENES

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # =

e i

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 32. XA AT EEMB AT FE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of REBERERR ARA 2 ENH B
both reporting periods are as follows: RNAIFFBEWNT

Issued and fully paid

Name of Place of Place of share / registered Proportion of nominal value of
subsidiary incorporation  operation  capital issued/registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ERTRAR
WBLTER AR  EERE  RbG/HREE AATRACET/ERRAEEZILH IERE
Directly Indirectly
B
2017 2017
“¥-tf -T-°F Z¥-t%
% %
China Nuclear British Virgin Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares 100 100 — —  Investment holding
International Islands ("BVI") US$50,000
Corporation
TREREEERLR XBEARER FR EAR50,000% T 100 100 - - REABK
(XE&BR
Bsl)
CNNC International Hong Kong Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares - — 100 100 Service company
(HK) Limited HK$10,000
AR (BR)RRAT B Bk £ERE%10,000 - - 100 100 RBRA
Emeelt Mines LLC Mongolia Mongolia  Registered capital - — 100 100 Mineral exploration in
US$10,000 the Mongolia
Emeelt Mines LLC 5t EE st AR 7<10,000% 7T - - 100 100 RRERE
deal Mining BVI Hong Kong  Registered capital 100 100 - — Investment holding
US$50,000
BEER AREARES R a8 50,000% 7T 100 100 - — REAZK
Western Prospector Mongolia Mongolia  Registered capital - - 100 100 Mineral exploration in
Mongolia LLC US$10,000 the Mongolia
Western Prospector 56 b R AR10,000% T - - 100 100 REEFE
Mongolia LLC
Focus International BVI Hong Kong ~ Ordinary shares - — — 100 Trading of uranium
Development US$50,000
Corporation (Note)
ERRRERERLR EBABRNS FE £ 8 %50,000% T - - - 100 #ERES
(B &)
Note:  Pursuant to an approval of deregistration issued by the local authority, Focus Mt BB BNEERRELT  FAERBERER

International Development Corporation was deregistered during the year. BARAFEEHEM -
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32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continvea
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results,
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

For the year ended 31st Decembér, 2017 BEZZT—tF+ZRA=+—-BLFE

R.FAAFNEEMBLATFIK
(&)
EAFEFE  LRIBARRTHE
AEHES -

ERAINAEERBRIBEFEREE
XE BERBBEZARAMER
Al -BEERRINHEMHBARZF
FEREMNBER TR -
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Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for

five years ended 31st December, 2017:

RESULTS

each of the

ATHIAEBBE_FT—LF+ - A

St BLERAEFESFZMBEHE

E 35

For the year ended 31st December

BE+-_A=+-HL%EE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F —T-NF _—T-1F _—Z-—R"§ 8-t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT  BETr  EETR
Revenue e 25 1,168,097 520,380 57,755 189,429 652,060
(Loss) profit before taxation BRBAT (B 18) & A (4,749)  (156,223)  (220,599) (28,192) 257
Taxation MIE (13,864) (174) — - —
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER) R (18,613)  (156,397)  (220,599) (28,192) 257
(Loss) earnings per share BR(EE)BF
— Basic (HK cents) — BEARGE) (3.8) (32.0) (45.1) (5.8) 0.1
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERABE
As at 31st December
R+=B=+—-H
2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-MNFE —T-RhF T F ZF—-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETr  BETr  BETr #¥Fn
Total assets BEE 994,570 832,495 608,716 792,148 728,390
Total liabilities BafE (47,599) (41,899) (38,831)  (250,265)  (182,684)
Fquity attributable to owners of ARFHBEANEGRER
the Company 946,971 790,596 569,385 541,883 545,706
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Unit 3009, 30th Floor
No.118 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2598 1010
Fax: (852) 2598 6262
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